

Monthly General Meeting Minutes

April 8, 2024, 7 PM – 8:30 PM Online via Zoom

1. Call to order

- a. Welcome everyone!
- b. Pledge of Allegiance
- c. Review expectations
- d. Welcome first-time guests and elected officials
 - i. New guests, please enter your name and email in the chat and we'll stay connected!
 - ii. Sen. A. Cleveland the importance of defeating ballot initiative. Announced her plan to run for reelection. Event will be held at the Academy on April 24th from 5-6:30pm
 - iii. Rep. M. Stonier she is focusing on recruiting democrat candidates to run across the state. She is also running for reelection.
- 2. Consent Agenda: Single motion to approve all items listed below

Motion Susan Schwartz, seconded by Lisa Henry. Approved by unanimous consent

- a. Approve this meeting's agenda and prior meetings' minutes.
- b. Approve PCO's submitted by LD's Mandalynn Harbert PCO 451
- 3. Four Fundamentals
 - a. Consistent Messaging
 - i. ACTION: Seek motion to adopt the Clark County Democrats' Platform
 (See Attachment A, below)
 Motion Alysia Privrat, seconded by Donna Sinclair. Approved by unanimous consent
 - ii. "What We Stand For" videos update
 - b. Win With 10!
 - ACTION: Seek motion to adopt the Voter Contact Expectations and 2024 Timeline (See Attachment B, below)

Motion Peter Aller, seconded by Charles Polacek. Approved by unanimous consent

- c. Sustaining Donors: Everyone please sign up here to give \$5/month
- d. Ogden Dinner: Saturday, August 24, 5-9 PM, Vancouver Hilton, Featuring Lt. Gov. Denny Heck as MC and keynotes by Rep. Marie Gluesenkamp Perez and Sen. Maria Cantwell

4. Old business

 a. Forward Friday on April 26, paired with a fundraiser for Manka Dhingra, candidate Washington State Attorney General. No donation required. Event will be at 12330 SE 5th St, Suite 3, Vancouver, 98683. This is in an office not a restaurant/bar space.

- b. March's event was a success
- 5. New business
 - a. Initiatives—vote no on all initiatives this year
- 6. Reports
 - a. State Committeepersons
 Leah Perkel State delegate meeting June 21-23. Attended 49th LD platform meeting
 - Election Observers Committee Chair
 Andrew Brewer ballots went out April 5th for Camas Emergency Medical Services and Ridgefield
 School District proposition. Observers are scheduled
- 7. Announcements and good of the order
 - a. Indivisible Greater Vancouver Meeting can organize to write letters to the editor. Cascade Park Library April 17th at 6pm 600 ne 136th St, Vancouver, WA
 - b. Jessica Smith organizes a newsletter to students, their families and those that work with students and will include information on the initiative
 - c. John Zingale will be running for State Representative Position #2 in the 18th LD. Sen Anne Rivers has announced she will not run for re-election which makes this an open and flippable seat.
 - d. 17th LD and 14th due to redistricting many of the republican leaning precincts have now been made part of the 20th LD from the 17th and the correction of a Voting Rights Act violation, now the 17th LD and 14th LD are considered democrat leaning.
 - e. Terri Niles has filed to run in the 17th LD for State Representative.
 - f. Leah Perkel has won her election as a Clark Conservation Commission Supervisor. The Commission is asking for people to respond to a survey https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/ZHSTMT3
 - g. Fundraiser and party for Denny Heck April 17th at 5-7pm at 301 Pasadena Way, Vancouver, WA 98661
 - h. Grumpy Old Democrats tabling event at Esther Short Park for Registration outreach https://signup.com/client/invitation2/secure/71344310005/false#/invitation
- 8. **8:00 PM CHAIRS' ROUNDTABLE:** Expect exchange of ideas, brainstorming, listening session, member advice to LD Chairs and County Chair.
- 9. Rotating LD Chair's Report: 49th Legislative District (5 minutes) deferred
- 10. General discussion and brainstorming (25 minutes)
- 11. Adjourn at 8:43

The Clark County Democrats'

Unity Platform

In these pivotal times, the Clark County Democrats stand for a practical and unifying path forward. Thus, our Unity Platform respects Democrats and non-Democrats alike. It builds people up with opportunity, kindness, and togetherness. We love Clark County, and we respect all who live here. We also believe in America, and that is why we seek unity over partisanship. We are confident that together we can build an American future that is prosperous, powerful, good, kind, and generous toward all people.

There is nothing that Americans can't accomplish when we put our minds to it. For that reason:

- 1. We believe Clark County is for all of us and America is for all of us.
- 2. We believe good government is about balance, working together, and cultivating healthy unity among all Americans.
- 3. We stand for authentic democracy in our republic, including accepting the will of the people after elections and supporting the constitution.
- 4. We support strengthening rural communities and protecting their rural character.
- 5. We support good jobs, affordable homes, low energy costs, and a healthy environment, while preserving local farms and open spaces.
- 6. We stand for human rights and women's rights, and we believe America is better and stronger because of the diverse races, belief systems, and gender identities who live together in our vibrant and beautiful nation.
- 7. We support our thriving small businesses, fast growing and innovative large businesses, and we stand for workers' rights to earn a living wage. We believe that Clark County can find a balanced business approach that is fair to all.
- 8. We advocate for an orderly, lawful, and welcoming immigration system that recognizes the nation's origins, and creates a more effective path to citizenship. We reject the notion that immigrants threaten American values, and instead affirm that immigrants enrich and fortify the very essence of America.
- 9. We stand up for every woman's personal freedom to access high-quality reproductive health care services, including all forms of birth control, IVF, and safe and legal abortion.
- 10. We believe in healthy communities, which is why we support affordable and accessible quality healthcare without preexisting condition qualifications for all Americans.
- 11. We believe that climate change is real, happening now, and must be addressed as an emergency. Our children have a right to inherit a clean, uncontaminated world.
- 12. We believe that education is a critical public good that supports democracy and that it is our collective responsibility to ensure that every child receives a world-class education to prepare them for the 21st century. Ensuring educational options at all ages, including apprenticeship, trade school, internships, university, or other career pathways enables participation in civil society and empowers us all to lead meaningful lives, no matter who we are or where we come from.
- 13. We believe in responsible and lawful gun-ownership, and we support reasonable safety measures to prevent gun violence and stop our children from being killed,
- 14. We support America's role as a leader in the global community of nations, and we seek consistent leadership that upholds principles of human rights, the rule of law and authentic democracy worldwide.
- 15. We envision an America where unity, kindness, and prosperity prevail, as the American people unite for a future that is not only powerful and practical, but also civil, kind, and respectful toward all.

Call to Action

The Clark County Democrats seek your support through the following actions.

- A. Vote for Democrats, for a unifying and balanced approach to help all Americans succeed and thrive.
- B. To help this approach grow, we ask all other interested organizations to endorse this Unity Platform and organize with us so we can pass legislation that reflects it.
- C. We ask elected officials to take action to enact the Unity Platform and achieve the following milestones.

Milestones to Enact the Unity Platform

- 1. **Build the I-5 Bridge and bring federal money and jobs to every part of Clark County** through construction, high-speed internet, roads, bridges, technology, and other infrastructure projects. Basic infrastructure is good for the economy and provides jobs.
- 2. **Support local government officials** in working with our federal delegation to secure funding from President Biden's Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, the CHIPS semiconductor law, and green jobs from the Inflation Reduction Act. These laws are creating millions of jobs across the nation, and both rural and urban Clark County should get their fair share.
- 3. **Provide affordable energy and affordable homes for Clark County's people.** Support our Public Utility District, expand programs that reduce people's energy costs, and hold the county accountable for developing affordable homes through transparently reporting whether we are closing the affordable housing gap each year.
- 4. **Create "American Pride Jobs" in rural areas** by modeling the 1930s New Deal programs. An American Pride Jobs Program would provide good wages for work on public projects and funding for job training, college attendance, or apprenticeships in high-demand fields. Ensuring our workforce is equipped with high-demand skills is smart for our economy, locally and globally.
- 5. **Prepare today for predictable economic disruptions** that can be caused by recessions, pandemics, climate change, modern technologies such as artificial intelligence, or other unpredictable events. Maintain an "on hold" list of **American Pride Jobs** in every part of the state that can be made available during economic downturns, so that people who are laid off can quickly go to work and preserve their income, marketability, self-worth, pride, and dignity.
- 6. **Protect human rights**, including women's rights, environmental protection, affordable housing, and the rights of underrepresented groups.
- 7. **Enact Healthcare for All Who Choose It**. Maintain Medicare, Social Security, Medicaid, the Affordable Care Act (Obamacare), and create Medicare for All Who Choose it, allowing regular Americans to buy into Medicare with a sliding scale premium, as an optional alternative to buying private sector health insurance.
- 8. **Rebuild the middle class**. Focus economic strategies on creating living wage jobs with benefits for regular Americans, instead of a more generalized goal of "growth," which too often creates concentrated wealth at the top instead of good jobs.
- 9. **Reform corporate law**. Incentivize public corporations to consider environmental impact, human rights, worker rights, and consumer rights as priorities. Today, most public corporations have one priority: profit (also called shareholder return). They can be sued by their stockholders if they consider anything else as a co-equal priority. This must change.
- 10. Reduce gun deaths while upholding the right to bear arms. Prior to a gun purchase, require a gun safety course, a gun license like a driver's license, a background check including mental health and domestic violence history, two references signing on behalf of your character and safety, and a check-in with recent domestic partners since they are the most frequent victims of gun violence; and increase the penalties for selling weapons on the black market. No policy is perfect, and we recognize this causes inconvenience and delay for lawful gun purchasers. However, the need for improvement is manifestly clear, and we believe this approach balances the right to bear arms with reasonable efforts to stop weapons from falling into the wrong hands, to save thousands of lives.
- 11. **Reduce and adapt to climate change**. Create economic incentives to reduce air pollution and prepare our communities for the coming impacts of global climate change. Support Washington's Climate Commitment Act and oppose ballot initiative 2117, which seeks to overturn it. This initiative is funded by a Republican mega-donor and hedge-fund manager whose goal is to allow corporate pollution with no consequences. All of us—Democrats and non-Democrats alike—must work together to prioritize a clean environment and address global climate change. Vote no on I-2117.

- 12. **Support immigrants in our communities**. We believe that a sensible, humane, and responsible approach to immigration strengthens the United States. Immigrants are essential to our society and our economy. They grow our food, care for our loved ones, serve in our armed forces, and provide critical health care services. Immigrants join our families, enrich our culture and make America stronger. Not only do immigrants support us—immigrants are us. Our families and our communities, our congregations and our schools, our businesses large and small have been built and sustained through immigration. That's why we are committed to building a 21st century immigration system that reflects our values, supports citizenship for Dreamers, repairs past harms, heals our communities, rebuilds our economy, and renews our global leadership.
- 13. **Reform campaigns**. Pass federal legislation establishing that corporations are not people and may not contribute more to any political campaign than a typical American household of median income. This will return our government to "we, the people" and give regular Americans equal footing with the wealthy campaign contributors who currently hold disproportionate power over lawmakers and lawmaking.
- 14. **De-rigging the tax system**. Recognize that the tax system is rigged for the benefit of the very rich and we insist that it be fixed. Regardless of political affiliation, all billionaires, multi-millionaires, and large corporations should pay their fair share.
- 15. **Modernize foreign policy**. Formalize a trading alliance of modern democracies, open to growth as more nations modernize, to consistently promote human rights, the rule of law, and genuine democracy inside its member-nations and across the world. This is an effective way to proactively promote stability, peace, and prosperity for all in our ever-more interconnected world.
- 16. **Recognize the inalienable rights of all people** to basic dignity, food, shelter, healthcare, education, and living wage jobs; and work toward a modern and humane society that respects these rights for all.

Voter Contact Expectations and 2024 Timeline

Your involvement is important to us to win more votes for Democrats, and to build an enjoyable, respectful, and mutually supportive team. With that in mind, we offer this positive and clear approach to help volunteers and Precinct Committee Officers (PCOs) know what is expected, what is flexible, and how they can access members of the Democratic team for support.

<u>Voter Contact Expectations for Clark County PCOs and Volunteers</u>

- 1. Actively take part in **Win with 10!** That means connecting regularly with 10 infrequently voting Democrats in your neighborhood, to encourage them to become regular and reliable voters. This is fundamental work to increase base turnout in Clark County. Instructions, coaching, voter lists, tips, and support are available from the Clark County Democrats.
- 2. Attend training on doorbelling, phone calling, or other voter contact techniques.
- 3. Reliably show up and doorbell, make phone calls, or use other voter contact techniques upon request from Democratic candidates' campaigns or local Democratic organizations. We'll help you find voter contact techniques you are comfortable with and enjoy doing! This provides a team of well-trained volunteers to our candidates to help them win their campaigns.
- 4. BONUS: The three items above are important for Democratic success. Please focus on accomplishing them as part of our team of volunteers and PCOs! Once you have done so and you are ready to accomplish even more, then please recruit a few friends and allies in your neighborhood to help you split up this work and accomplish it. These friends and allies are your "Precinct Committee," which is where the title "Precinct Committee Officer" comes from. Having a few friends help you organize your neighborhood makes it more fun and more helpful for achieving Democratic victories! This can give you the team you need to canvass (or telephone) your precinct in coordination with election strategy at least once a year, which is a key goal expressed in the state party's PCO handbook.

Important note: Any PCO or volunteer who would rather not do the work shown above because they prefer to do other specific work to help win more votes for Democrats should contact their Legislative District (LD) Chair or PCO/Volunteer Coordinator to discuss that and plan for other work. There is plenty to do and all volunteer work is appreciated! It is definitely ok to take on a different task instead of those above; just let us know what alternative task you prefer to do so we all stay organized.

To help us all work toward victory as an organized team, every new PCO recruited will be invited to participate when seeking confirmation at the Clark County Democrats General Meetings. This helps to ensure we are all working together as a team toward the same goals.

The Clark County Democrats seek to work collaboratively and invite the LDs to take part and provide a progress check-in on PCO activities at each general meeting. This may be a short reminder or a longer discussion, depending on your preferences. We seek to keep this direct voter contact strategy as a consistent priority across all our organizations.

Together, we can increase voter turnout for Democrats in our neighborhoods and all across Clark County and win more elections for Democrats. Thank you to our dedicated PCOs and volunteers!

2024 Timeline

November 2024: Joe Biden and Marie Gluesenkamp Perez Win! All our Democratic candidates win!

August – November 2024: The LDs and the Clark County Democrats are supplying campaigns with large numbers of well-trained volunteers for doorbelling, phone calling, and other voter contact

June – July 2024: Doorbelling training and phone calling training is held and every PCO and all willing volunteers attend and get trained up, so they are highly valuable to the 2024 candidates when asked to doorbell or phone call.

February – November 2024: Every PCO and every willing volunteer is taking active part in **Win With 10!** This means contacting 10 infrequently voting Democrats regularly and developing a rapport with those 10 people in their neighborhood, to encourage them to vote.

February 2024: The leads for the voter contact effort continue to text and call PCOs and volunteers to help them be successful contacting their 10 voters.

February 2024: To help us stay organized and on track, the Clark County Democrats Executive Committee, including the LD Chairs, considers and discusses—and hopefully adopts—this addendum to the State PCO Handbook, which would then be considered for adoption at the next General Meeting. This must be done in full consultation with the Legislative Districts who lead so much of this crucially important work.